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The Honorable Michael E. Horowitz 
Inspector General 
United States Department of Justice 
950 Pennsylvania Ave, NW 
Washington, DC 20530-0001 

Dear Mr. Horowitz: 

WASHINGTON, DC 20510 

May 16, 2017 

Shortly after Attorney General Jeff Sessions was confirmed by the U.S. Senate, the 
Washington Post published a story on March 1, 2017, entitled "Sessions Met with Russian 
Envoy Twice Last Year, Encounters He Later Did Not Disclose." One day later on March 2, 
2017, Attorney General Sessions held a news conference announcing he would recuse himself 
from all matters related to investigations connected to the 2016 presidential campaign. 

The recusal of a senior member of the Department of Justice related to a high profile 
investigation is always a significant act. However, as Attorney General Sessions himself stated 
at the news conference announcing his recusal "[i]f a specific matter arose where I believed my 
impartiality might reasonably be questioned." This recusal is required by Department of Justice 
regulations relating to conflicts of interest, 28 CFR § 45.2: 

... [N]o [D.O.J.] employee shall participate in a criminal investigation or prosecution if he 
has a personal or political relationship with: (1) Any person or organization substantially 
involved in the conduct that is the subject of the investigation or prosecution; or (2) Any 
person or organization which he knows has a specific and substantial interest that would 
be directly affected by the outcome of the investigation or prosecution. 28 CFR § 
45.2(a)(I) & (2). 

A "political relationship" is defined as " ... a close identification with an elected official, a 
candidate (whether or not successful) for elective, public office, a political party, or a campaign 
organization, arising from service as a principal advisor thereto or a principal official there of..." 
28 CFR § 45.2(c)(1). A "personal relationship" is defined as "a close and substantial connection 
of the type normally viewed as likely to induce partiality ... " 28 CFR § 45.2(c)(2). 

Attorney General Sessions acted as a surrogate for then-candidate Trump's campaign for 
president on numerous occasions including appearing and speaking at campaign events in 
support of candidate Trump. Further, reports that the Attorney General met with representatives 
of the Russian government, regardless of the capacity, lend credence to the specter of partiality 
that would arise over Attorney General Sessions' oversight or participation in any investigation 
that touches upon the 2016 presidential campaign, or the investigation of Russian involvement 
and attempts to influence the outcome of the subsequent election. 

The Attorney General recused himself from any involvement in the investigations 
surrounding the 2016 presidential campaign. The Attorney General's recusal language itself 
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could not be clearer: "I 11ave i1ow decided to recuse nlyself from any existing or futtire 
i11vcstigations of any 1natter relating in any \Vay to the cainpaigns for president of the United 
States.'' Attorney General Sessions State1nenl 011 Recusal, March 2, 2017. 

Despite this rccusaL Attorney General Sessions appears to have been inti111ately involved 
with the May 9, 2017, disn1issal of Federal Bttreau of Investigation (·'F.B.I.'') Director James 
Corney, who was in charge of an investigation of the Trun1p ca111paign and its ties to Russia. On 
Monday, May 8, 2017, Atto111ey General Sessions went to the \.\l]1ite llouse for a meeting with 
President Tru1np and Rod Rosenstein, his Deputy Attorney General, i11 order to discuss the 
removal of Director Cotney. 

On May 9, 2017, Attorney General Jeff Sessions sent a Jetter to Preside11t Trump 
reco1n1nending the termination of Director of the F.B.I. James B. Cotney, Jr. Attorney General 
Sessions stated, ·'I l1ave concluded tl1at a fresh stait is needed at the leadership of tl1e 
F.B.I ... Therefore, I n1ust recomn1end that you remove Director James B. Co1ney, Jr." 

In his tennination letter to Director Con1ey, President 'frump stated that he had received a 
letter '·fro1n the Attorney General [Sessions] ... reco1nmending your dismissal" as Director of the 
F .B.I. The follo\ving day, Attorney General Sessions reportedly began intervievving candidates 
to serve as the interi1n replacen1ent for Director Co1ney - candidates who would ternporarily lead 
the F.B.I. 's ongoing i11vestigation into the Trun1p can1paign. 

It is clear that Atton1ey General Sessio11s had an active role in the ter1ni11ation of Director 
Con1ey. "fhis seems to be in direct violation of Attorney General Sessions' recusal fro1n "any 
existing or fut11re investigations of ai1y n1atter relating in any way to the can1paigns for president 
of the United States." At the ti1ne of his te1111ination, Director Co111ey was actively leading the 
F.B.l.'s investigations into both the atte1npts by the Russiru1 government to influence the 2016 
presidential campaign, and the ties members/e111ployees/reprcsentatives of tl1e Trun1p Campaign 
had, or have, with the Russian govern1nent or Russim1 intellige11ce services. 

It is in1perative that the American people 11ave faith in the institutions that are 
investigating the influence a l1ostile foreign power may have l1ad on 011r presidential campaign, 
election, and the current adn1inistration of President Tru1np. We believe the Atton1ey General's 
involve1nent in the tennination of Director Co111ey has injected the exact "partiality" in these 
investigations he claimed to wish to avoid. J:.'urther, the President's recent adn1ission tl1at Corney 
was fired, at least in part, due to the Rt1ssia in\1estigation only raises furtl1er questions about the 
role of the Attorney General in the termination, his \Villing11ess to provide cover for a political 
decision, and both l1is a11d the Departme11t of Justice's ability to perforn1 an independent 
investigatio11. 1-Iis involvemet1t seetns to be a clear violation of his recusal, a11d can only be 
co11strued as an attempt to influence an ongoi11g investigation that threatens to exa1nine l1is own 
role in the 2016 preside11tial campaig11, as \Veil other elen1ents of President Trun1p 's campaign 
a11d administration. 

\Ve urge you to investigate whetl1er Attorney General Sessions has violated his recusal, 
and the n1les and regulations that govern it. Further, we ask that if you tind a violation that yolt 
explore \Vl1at effect sttch a violatio11 may l1ave on the ongoing investigations, and how the 
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integrity of these investigations can be restored. In addition to any related matter you find 
appropriate, we ask that you specifically seek to answer the following questions: 

1. To what extent is Attorney General Sessions required to recuse himself from 
investigations into matters related to the Trump campaign under 28 C.F.R. § 45.2, or 
any other relevant rules and regulations? 

2. What was the scope of Attorney General Sessions' publicly announced March 2, 
2017, recusal? 

3. What is the timeline of Anorney General Sessions' involvement in the removal of 
F.B.J. Director James Corney? Did his involvement in Director Corney's termination 
violate his recusal agreement or requirements, or other DOJ rules, regulations, and 
precedents? 

MARTIN HEINRICH 
United States Senator 

µ,,1tJ/t...-.4t 
RICHARD BLUMENTHAL 
Uni ted States Senator 

~~ 
KIRSTEN GILLIBRAND 

United States Senator 

Sincerely, 

States Senator 

United States Senator 

7: fkt;1L;" 
TA~KWORTH ~Ml~ 
United States Senator United States Senator 
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Uni ted States Senator 

MARlA CANTWELL 
United States Senator 

TOM UDALL 
United States Senator 
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